
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
COMBINED MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, JULY 24,2018 

Call to Order 

The Business Meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order at 
7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Hosfelt. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 

There are seven (7) Commissioners present at Roll Call. 

Adoption of Agenda 
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Motion to approve the Agenda as amended was made by Mr. Angel; seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Consent Agenda 18-12 
Approval of Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes ofTuesday, June 26, 2018 
and Levy Court Combined Meeting (Business) Minutes ofTuesday, July 10, 
2018. 

Mr. Angel Moved to approve Consent Agenda 18-12; seconded by Mr. Howell; 
carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

PRESENTATIONS 

The Honorable William C. Torbert, Jr: Good evening ladies and gentlemen. 
It's a pleasure to be here before you all on the Levy Court. Back in 1960, I was 
the first elected to the Kent County Coroner and served it for 8 years, every two 
year term; had to run every two years. Bill Berry, a funeral director in Milford 
and also Felton, wanted to become the last coroner as they were doing away with 
it. It was not going to be a joint medical examiner-coroner anymore, just a 
medical examiner. So they asked me to run for the Levy Court, which I did. I 
had a very formidable opponent, his name was AI Hitchcock. He was very 
famous with the WDOV people and I had a hard fight. I had won most of my 
elections. I won one time by 5,200 and the next year I won by 200. I lost 5,000 
votes in one year. That'll set you back some. But anyway, you have to take that. 
I won by 20 some votes over AI Hitchcock, believe you me I learned my lesson. 
You got to shake hands and walk door-to-door. We had a very interesting year 
because the people before us, Levy Court before us, had just started the Kent 
County Sewer and we continued it with a few contracts and things like that. We 
always had a problem. We didn't have Kent County garbage collection like you 
have now. We had people that would throw garbage all over the place. That was 
one of our big problems. The other problem probably was trying to get the City 
of Dover to join the Kent County Sewer. Our famous Mayor Carroll didn't want 
to join, but finally the Federal Government came in and made him join the Kent 
County Sewer. We met in the basement of the old Courthouse on The Green. We 
had the Civil Defense room downstairs next to Bud Golder who was the Civil 
Defense Director for a long time. We had just a little table and we all sat around 
the table and our Clerk of the Peace was there with us, Miss Betty McFadden, 
who lived in your mother Patsy's house and where I had, with Jimmy upstairs in 
the garage ... We had a little gang up there. She lived in the house after you all 
vacated the house and she was a very fine lady too. I just wanted to mention 
some of our ... All I remember is John McKenna and of course you know Mrs. 
McKenna, Bill Paskey, a farmer from Felton was on our committee, Ike Thomas 
from around the Hartly area, Dr. Forrester a veterinarian up on the duel highway, 
and ChiefTumer, he was a State Policeman and then he was a City of Dover 
Chief of Police for some time. He used to like to talk about his motorcycle riding. 
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We met in the morning, we didn't meet at night. When it got near 12 o'clock 
he'd look at his wrist and he'd say, "My wrist is getting pale. I've got to go eat 
something." Meaning, get out of here and go eat. Josh Twilley took over my 
position; I decided not to run after two years and then I came back after that. 
Colonel Derrickson was our County Chairman and him and his whole family were 
really dedicated to the party as back in those days both sides were very dedicated. 
Like they are today but they kind of ran the whole show and he asked me to run 
against Rick Barros one of our lawyers in Dover. So I decided to and I ran and 
successfully won. I'm glad to see having prayer tonight. I read the Bible for nine 
years before the saluting of the flag and I was, being Kent County Comptroller 
while we gave report every week so I was here every week. Georgette Williams 
took over after I left. I ran a primary and got beat and the next year I ran 
successfully for the Senate and won and I had to leave my Comptroller's job one 
year early. It was either one or two years early and taker over ... go to the Senate. 
I'm just proud of you all, you've kept, I think .. .I always remember our rate as .30 
cents a hundred and I think it's still the same today. I've got to commend you all 
for doing such a good job for Kent County. I've lived here all my life even 
though I do go to Florida quite a bit and I enjoy Marco Island, but my property's 
here, I pay taxes here and I live most of the year here. I'm proud of our Kent 
County government. You do a fine job and just keep up the good work and just 
work for the people. That's what we're here for when we're elected to do the job. 
Thank you for having me tonight. Being 84 almost, next January, why being 50 
years since I was here this coming November, why, proud to be here before all of 
you. I don't know if any ofyou have any questions. That's about ... 

Mr. Pepper: So you met in the mornings. How many times a month did you meet 
back then? We meet every Tuesday night unless there's five Tuesdays then we 
take the 5th Tuesday off. So how many times a month did you meet? 

Mr. Torbert: Every week. We had the same problems that you all have with your 
zoning. That was one of the biggest things that you have to do, people for it and 
against it, so some people like you and some people hate you after it's over. 

Mr. Pepper: Did you have a County Administrator or an equivalent? Of course 
we have Mike Petit de Mange as our County Administrator. 

Mr. Torbert: Bob O'Brien who our new building was named after and of course 
tore it down and now we got the Supreme Court there, Delaware Court there. But 
that was a nice building and Bob O'Brien he did a really nice job. 

Mr. Pepper: Do you recall how many residents lived in Kent County back then? 

Mr. Torbert: I don't know, when I was a young man Dover had 5,000. I 
remember that. I'm supposing we had 40-45 thousand. 
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Mr. Pepper: When I was on Levy Court from '94 to '98 we had about 124,000 
people. Then when I was re-elected in 2010 now all of a sudden we have 17 4,000 
people. So we've had quite an increase here in Kent County in the past 50 years 
and the past 30 years. 

Mr. Torbert: Well as long as they keep raising the taxes up in New Jersey and 
Pennsylvania, they're just coming to Delaware. We throw lumber out there in the 
yard and it builds a house and you know ... And now I'm glad that they're 
coming here. I don't want to over populate the area, but it's nice that people have 
a place to come that can retire and live within their means. You've got to give 
good service but you've got to have low taxes. Thank you again for your jobs 
you do. 

Mr. Sweeney: Senator, you're not walking away with an unanswered question 
from me. You mentioned services. You've mentioned all of the things that Kent 
County has added as part of the services since 50 years when you were here. 
How many employees were there at Kent County Levy Court? 

Mr. Torbert: There weren't that many, your basic offices that we had in the 
Courthouse. We had started of course with our engineering office and that was 
probably right ... I don't know if that was when I was in the Levy Court or as 
Comptroller but we had the engineering, and O'Brien I think, was the head of 
that. There weren't many, not many at all. In fact we started a retirement, I know 
right before I took over, a very small retirement. 

Mr. Pepper: So being almost 84 are you the oldest surviving Levy Court 
Commissioner? 

Mr. Torbert: I think I'm the oldest. There were, a couple of years ago, there were 
two and I think I'm the last, the oldest now. 

Mr. Pepper: That's quite a distinction. This is very informative. We were talking 
and I mentioned that you are coming up on your 50th anniversary serving Levy 
Court and we thought it would be a good idea to have you come and speak and let 
us know about what it was like back 50 years ago. Of course we all know what 
it's like today. We appreciate you coming in. 

Mr. Banta: Since you just happen to be here, Senator, Mr. Pepper has a couple of 
comments he'd like to make. If you could just stand there and be at ease for a few 
minutes he'll make these comm~nts to you and we'll move on from there. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you, Mr. President. What I have before me is a resolution, 
Resolution 3709, Kent County Medal of Honor for the Honorable William C. 
Torbert, Jr. 

WHEREAS, William C. Torbert Jr. has distinguished himself in service to Kent 
County, the State of Delaware, and the United States of America; and 
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WHEREAS, William C. Torbert Jr. served as the elected State Coroner from 1961-
1969, Kent County Levy Court Commissioner from 1969-1971 including a one-year 
term as President, returning as Kent County Comptroller and serving from 1973 until 
1981, when he was elected State Senator representing the 16th District until his 
retirement in 1994; and 

WHEREAS, William C. Torbert Jr. has sustained a solemn family tradition of attending 
to the funerary needs of the central Delaware community for 1 00 years and has 
inspired his own children to follow in the footsteps of his grandfather in the quest to 
embody the motto of Torbert Funeral Chapels- "Our family serving your family, 
since 1918;" and 

WHEREAS, William C. Torbert Jr. has earned a reputation since joining the family 
business in 1955 for his compassion for families during times of grief and 
his sincere devotion to serving the citizens of Kent County; and 

WHEREAS, William C. Torbert Jr. has been recommended for a Kent County Medal in 
accordance with the provisions of Kent County Levy Court policy and the requirements 
thereof; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Kent County Levy Court does 
hereby recognize, commend, and award William C. Torbert Jr. of Dover, 
Delaware, with a Kent County Medal for Meritorious Service on this the 24th day of 
July, 2018. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you Mr. Pepper. This is a Resolution. Would you care to make a 
motion, sir? 

Mr. Pepper: I make a Motion that we unanimously approve Resolution 3 709; seconded 
by Mr. Angel and Mr. Sweeney; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

The Commissioners and County Administrator came to the front and asked Mr. Torbert 
to join them for presentation of the Medal of Honor. 

Mr. Torbert: Thank you, thank you very much. One thing while you're coming down, 
I want to say about Mr. Buckson's father. He was a great man and it was a pleasure to 
know him and to work with him back in my earlier days. And also your mother, who 
lived down the street from me growing uJ', and we rode to school together and same 
class, we graduated. This will be our 65 year out of Dover High School. 

Mr. Pepper: What we have here is our County Medal and this is a really 
prestigious medal. We just don't give them out for any minor reason. You really 
have to have earned it and my good friend here, Senator Bill Torbert, has 
definitely earned this for everything that he has done, not only for Kent County, 
but the State of Delaware. This medal, we've only given out 20 some, like I said 
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since its inception. We just don't give it out for any reason. You've got to earn 
it and you have. 

The medal was presented, congratulations were offered and photos were then 
taken. 

Employee of the Month - August 2018 

The following was read into the record by Lorri Tanaka: 

Kent County Department Heads have selected Larry T. Riddick from the 
Department of Administration as the August 2018 Employee of the Month. 

Larry started with Kent County in June 2016 and serves as a Custodian in the 
Facilities Management Office. His primary duties include recycling collection and 
complex terrazzo floor maintenance in the Kent County Administrative Complex 
as well as weekend assignments at the Kent County Recreation Center. 

Larry is a dedicated employee who earns high praise from supervisors for his 
personal commitment to maintain a clean and sanitary environment for visitors 
and fellow employees. Larry is a dependable employee who can be counted on to 
complete all assigned tasks in a safe manner and represent Kent County in the 
most positive way. 

According to Facilities Director Dick MacDonald, "The work our custodians do is 
often underappreciated, but it is extremely important in maintaining a safe 
environment for everyone working in or using our facilities. Larry comes to work 
every day with a positive attitude and diligently performs his duties in a manner 
that generates good will from the public and visitors. He is well deserving of this 
recognition." 

Congratulations Larry on a job well done! Larry resides in Milford in 
Commissioner Buckson's and Commissioner Pepper's districts. 

Larry joined the Commissioners and County Administrator at the front for 
congratulatory remarks and photos. 

Mr. Banta: Like all of our employees, you are always very friendly, very 
respectful, promotes such a positive image for our County. I can't say enough 
about the work that you do and the job that you do for the County as well as your 
attitude, extremely important. I'd also like to know and several people have 
asked me this today before we got to this point, what vitamins do you really take? 
You got this tall doing something and it wasn't just running around so do you take 
vitamin B, vitamin D? You take no vitamins? You just grew? 
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Mr. Pepper: Larry, when I saw you were the Employee of the Month I got to 
thinking back on how long I've known you. You know it's been 30 years? Thirty 
years. Larry and I went to Delaware State College together 30 years ago. You 
believe that? Every time I see Larry he's the same way, this is Larry. I mean he's 
got the same pleasant personality, all he sees is the bright side of everything and 
he does a great job at what he does. Larry's a hard worker and we're extremely 
happy to have you. 

Mr. Angel: Larry, congratulations and Terry said just about everything. I haven't 
got to know you, but I hope to get to know you in the next 30 years though. 

Mr. Buckson: We've been around together many years ... But anyway appreciate 
you. Getting it done in what, a couple of years' time? That's pretty impressive 
stuff. Appreciate you and it just shows what you do. Appreciate you. Thank 
you. 

Mr. Howell: Larry, good job. We're glad we have you here. 

Mr. Sweeney: Larry, congratulations and I can tell you that no matter how I come 
in the door, ifl'm in a sour mood and I see you, make's my day brighter and I 
appreciate that. I hope that in 30 years when Commissioner Buckson is inviting 
Commissioner Banta back for his 50 year pin and medal, this place will still look 
the way it is because of your efforts. I appreciate it. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Larry, thank you. You're always very nice and very special when I 
come in, a warm greeting and I appreciate that. And your dedication to your job 
is just something we're all very proud of and appreciate very much. Thank you. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Larry, a lot of things have been said that I would have said 
so I won't say them again. But you are a great example, you bring it every day. I 
always look forward to right about 4 o'clock because you usually stop by my 
office and say hi, drop in and talk to everybody in the office as you make your 
way through and it's just indicative of the type of attitude you bring to the job. 
And it's always great to be recognized by your peers and that's what this is all 
about. You know, it's the department heads, the employees that you work with 
who selected you for this honor. So congratulations, it's a pleasure working with 
you and I look forward to many more years of service with you. Thank you. 

Mr. Riddick: I just want to say I appreciate the award. All the guys here, it's like 
a family, you know they are cool and they're good. I can't do it without ... just 
friends, you know? I appreciate it, everything that everybody does; it's like a big 
family. I think about Brenda ... her mom; you know I miss her mom being here, 
she had to take her reins. And Mr. Buckson, I see him at church sometimes, he 
stops in. So it's just personal feelings that I feel about people here, it's like a big 
family. It's like Terry said, I remember him in college. It's a good feeling. Miss 
Lorri over there, you know to see her every day, it's great. As well as Kelly, so 
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it's like family here. And Mark back there, it's good to see Mark. Like I said, it's 
a family and I appreciate it. Even my coworker, it's good to see her here. And 
Diane ... I'm sorry I'm getting choked up but it's a great atmosphere and I 
appreciate the award with a lot of humility and thank you very much. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Mr. Kujala advised there was one new employee on the agenda and Sarah Keifer, 
the Director of Planning Services would have the honor of making the 
introduction. 

Ms. Keifer: Good evening, Commissioners. It is my pleasure to introduce Paul 
Modesto. He joined us on July 2nd as a Building Code Inspector. He comes to us 
with a great deal of experience as both a Journeyman Carpenter and as a Building 
Superintendent. He also has a Bachelor's Degree in Marketing and Business 
Administration, so he comes to us with a wealth of experience. He has hit the 
ground running. We're incredibly pleased to have him on Staff. Paul currently 
resides in Commissioners Banta's and Pepper's districts. Paul, would you like to 
say a few words? 

Mr. Modesto: Hi, thank you very much for the opportunity. I'm really excited 
about the job; it's a great team and environment. I look forward to years to come 
to contributing to that team. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Banta: Paul, we certainly appreciate you being here and since you like not 
only in my district but Mr. Pepper's district, Mr. Pepper any comment you want 
to make? 

Mr. Pepper: Paul, you just heard Larry Riddick talk about being a family type 
environment and we'd just like to welcome you to the family. Best ofluck to you 
and hope you have a long career here. 

Mr. Modesto: Thank you very much, I appreciate it. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are being conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. 

Everyone will have a chance to speak. All statements are to be made from the 
podium at the front of the room. For the record, please give your name and 
address. Copies of any written statements or exhibits used during the hearing 
should be presented to for identification and inclusion in the record. 

For each application before the Levy Court: 
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1. The President of Levy Court will introduce the application; 

2. The Levy Court will then receive testimony from those in favor; 

3. Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

4. After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the 
application will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it 
deems appropriate. 

Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting as well as a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the 
Regional Planning Commission. I would ask that the recommendation be 
included, by reference, in the permanent record of the meeting established by the 
Clerk of the Peace. 

The Public Notice of the Hearing was published in the July 6, 2018 edition of 
the Delaware State News. 

PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Application: C-18-04 Edwards, Latisha; Applicant/Owner: Latisha & 

Shay Edwards; Zoning District/Proposed Use: AC (Agricultural 
Conservation)/Home Daycare; Area & Location/ID#: 0.51 + acre on the 
southern side of Galway Court, approx. 224ft. southeast of the intersection 
with Tullamore Road, described as Lot 73 of Irish Hill subdivision, 
southwest of Magnolia I SM-00-112.00-03-73.00-000. 

Ms. Keifer: The first application before the Levy Court tonight, C-18-04 is a 
Conditional Use Application for a Home Occupation, in this case a home day care. 
The site is a half an acre. It's Lot 73 oflrish Hill subdivision. It is inside the 
Growth Zone. The Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this 
application at their July 5th hearing and at their July 12th business meeting voted 
unanimously to recommend conditional approval. The one condition the 
Regional Planning Commission has suggested and the applicant had agreed to, 
was the installation of a fence around a play area in the yard. So again this comes 
with a recommendation for approval, I'm happy to answer any questions you 
might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application C-18-04 

IN FAVOR 

Mrs. Latisha Edwards, Mr. Shay Edwards, 52 Galway Court, Magnolia, DE 
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Mr. Edwards: Basically what we would like to do is ... we'd like to set up a home 
daycare at 52 Galway Court. Basically we noticed there was the need for it in the 
area and my wife was looking for some self-employment and this looked like it 
would be a good opportunity. There was another lady down the street who 
actually has a home daycare, kind of gave us the idea to do it. When we knew 
that she was in the community we thought it would be okay to purchase a house in 
that area and go ahead and move on with that. We thought ... we did see that there 
was a deed restriction against doing that and so as one of the things we figured, 
well *INAUDBILE* we'd apply and see if ... we get turned down we get turned 
down. But if we get it, you know there's someone else down the street had gotten 
approval so we should be able to as well. We submitted it to the local...our 
Homeowners Association in order to get it approved and we hadn't heard 
anything back and 30 days later, in accordance with the deed restrictions anything 
you don't hear about after 30 days is considered approval, so we assumed at that 
point it was approved. However, 6-8 days later we found out that it was not 
approved by them and that they opposed it. One of the other arguments we've 
had against the case was that ... having a daycare on the same street as the other 
daycare would be ... cause an excessive amount of traffic on one end of the street. 
However my counter to that is that there's another exit on the street. If there's too 
much traffic over there in the mornings than you can go around, it's about 100 
meters away, 200 meters away. It's really not that far. Another one was the noise 
that it might cause, having children there. It is a family community, there's a lot 
of families there. Having six children, we weren't looking to max it out but we 
were looking to have about six children in the area ... or having six children in our 
home to watch ... up to six children anyway. We didn't think that those areas, that 
would be an excessive amount of children in the backyard playing in the area we 
have over there. We have no issue at all building the fence around there to kind 
of keep the kids in one area and make sure that we can mitigate any risk in the 
kids getting out. We also intend to take out insurance to cover down on that and 
one of the other arguments we had was the additional traffic that might cause. So 
if we have six more children than that means six more vehicles in the morning, six 
more vehicles in the afternoon. One of the things we had come up with was my 
wife had spoken with another woman who had a daycare in the area and basically 
I had a set of bylaws to ensure that the clients that we have would respect our 
neighbors and not make a lot of noise, not come in at all hours of the day, not be 
turning around in people's driveways or on their grass areas and everything else. 
That is one of the things we intend to have people sign when they come on. The 
additional traffic caused by the vehicles we have will be about six vehicles in the 
morning, six vehicles in the evening and that should be about it. What the issue 
is, is we have two trailer parks that people use to ferry down *INAUDIBLE* 
street from one side to the other and I don't think those 12 additional trips a day 
are really going to make that much of a difference but apparently the HOA 
disagrees with me. That's about all I have. Thank you very much for your 
consideration and do you have any questions? 
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IN OPPOSITION 

Public Hearing Closed on Application C-18-04 

Mr. Buckson: Mr. President, Mr. and Mrs. Edwards, ifyou .. .I'm going to repeat 
some things because I am very consistent in this type of application when there's 
a matter of a deed restriction that's involved. I consistently ... I honor the deed 
restriction. I feel very strongly that if we're going to have those in place, we're 
going to allow ... we allow an HOA to in effect function properly that we need to 
respect its wishes. So consistently when it's obvious that it conflicts with the 
restrictions listed in the deed than I routinely, consistently vote no. The good 
news is the Levy Court typically goes against me. So that's where we're going to 
go tonight. I am going ... and I am not leading the witness, I'm just telling you, for 
consistency's sake I cannot support this application. I appreciate the comments 
that you've made but there's value in the restrictions in the deed that are listed 
there and I think that I should support them. So my point is, I will now make a 
Motion that we deny C-18-04 Home Occupation Daycare; seconded by 
Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: No. No. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, per my motion. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I agree with Mr. Buckson. I vote yes. 

Mr. Howell: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Over the last year or so we've had a lot of discussions on Levy 
Court about home owners and their responsibilities and their relationship with the 
HOA and the deeds and I'm hopeful that Levy Court gets more involved in the 
deed restrictions in the future. At this point, my vote's yes. 

Mr. Banta: Reluctantly, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) nay. Application C-18-04 has been denied. 

PETITIONS FOR CONDITIONAL USE REQUIRING SITE PLAN 
APPROVAL 

Mr. Howell: 
1. Application #/Name: CS-18-03 I Bay Communications; 

Applicant/Owner: Bay Communications I ELB, LLC; Zoning District/ 
Proposed Use: IG (General Industrial)/Telecommunications Facility; 
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Area & Location I ID#: On the west side ofS DuPont Hwy. (US Rt. 13) 
approx. 150' north ofNine Foot Rd. (Co. Rd. 62), south of Farmington I 
MN -00-193.00-01-48.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: The next application before the Levy Court, CS-18-03 is a 
Conditional Use Site Plan for a telecommunications tower. The site itself is 
zoned IG (General Industrial). It is on the west side of Route 13, 150' north of 
Nine Foot Road, just south of Farmington. The Regional Planning Commission 
took testimony on the application at their July 5th hearing. At their July 12th 
business meeting they voted unanimously to recommend conditional approval. 
There are some notable changes from the initial application. Initially the 
applicant had requested approval for a Lattice Tower and has since agreed to 
instead install a Monopole. They had also requested a waiver from the set-backs 
but have moved the tower so that that waiver's no longer required. The RPC did 
however recommend approval of the waiver from the overalllocational 
requirement which is a fairly typical waiver that's requested and granted. So 
again, this comes with a recommendation for approval. I'm happy to answer any 
questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application CS-18-03 

IN FAVOR 

Jonathon Jordan, 717 Constitution Drive, Exton, PA, the attorney for Bay 
Communications and T -Mobile: You should all have an exhibit binder that has 
18 exhibits and the exhibits really spell out our entire case. The ones that I would 
like you to focus on would be Exhibit 8 which is an aerial photograph that shows 
the subject property as well as the surrounding properties and the applicant has 
gone to each property owner that had more than 20 acres in the aerial on this 
photograph. I guess just to back up a second, and I know you all have heard 
many cell tower hearings, so I don't want to belabor any of this but this photo 
basically represents our search ring. The search ring is produced by the radio 
frequency engineer and it tells us where does a tower need to go to fill a coverage 
issue. So to fill the coverage issue that affects this site, and that's all spelled out 
in exhibit 7 which is our engineer's report, but somewhere in this site we need to 
put a tower in order to fix the coverage deficiencies. So we had our site 
acquisition specialist go to each property owner and nobody was interested in 
renting to us except the Hot Mix Plant who is currently our landlord. If you look 
at Exhibit A8, and we even went into a little bit more detail in Exhibit A18 there's 
an affidavit from the site acquisition specialist. So basically, we're limited to 
only being able to go in the area of the Hot Mix Plant. As I said, Exhibit A 7 is 
our engineer's report that describes the fact that the signal is inadequate in this 
general area shown on the plan, and therefore, we're proposing a 190' tall 
Monopole Tower. As Ms. Keifer said we've gotten recommendation from the 
Planning Staff and from the Planning Commission. We'll comply with all 
applicable ... we do comply with all applicable ordinances and we will comply 
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with all applicable regulations in the construction of the tower. I guess with that 
being said I'd like to move our exhibit binder into record and see ifthere are any 
questions. 

Mr. Buckson: Regrettably I was outside, but I'm familiar with what the 
application is and what the request that's being made is. Express a couple of 
challenges and I'm challenged with the fact that you can't find another location. 
This is a sensitive location and it's become very sensitive again here in the last 4-
6 weeks. So we get to relive this again even though it's a completely different 
application, and I get that, but it would have been real nice to know that a greater 
attempt was made to place this on another piece of property and there are other 
properties there, you stated that in your record. Maybe the offer needed to be a 
little better but there are other properties in the area that are suited. Just didn't 
change the mind of the people that you asked. But I'll get to the one that I think 
is, for me the best opportunity to blend this. On the north, northwest property 
where you offered a relocation of this and have presented an inconvenience to the 
plant, that's in some ofthe ... that's in some of the paper that I read. Are you 
familiar with that request, it was a meeting you had with Mr. Baker? 

Mr. Jordan: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Buckson: And he declined. 

Mr. Jordan: Correct. 

Mr. Buckson: That would be at best, the best opportunity for me to come onboard 
would be to place it in that location that it was offered to. If Mr. Baker would 
accept that you're telling me that that would work for you? 

Mr. Jordan: It would if we could reach an agreement with Mr. Baker and he 
declined and that's spelled out in Exhibit A18 that the effort ... Because the 
Planning Commission really beat us up on that point and we had to come back a 
second time and convince them that we did everything we could. 

Mr. Buckson: The point that I make, and no disrespect and I appreciate the offer, 
is that there is a viable location that minimizes the impact on the residents in that 
area it's just that the applicant chooses not to utilize it. That's all I have. Thank 
you. 

Mr. Jordan: Sure and I... Again the applicant cannot use that property because 
we don't have permission from the landowner. 

Mr. Buckson: The landowner, the one is the applicant ... Wait a minute, if I get 
this correct in the Restriction #34 the landowner is the applicant, is that correct 
Mister ... the attorney, Mr. Pepper? 
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Mr. W. Pepper: Yes. 
Mr. Buckson: So I don't know if what you just said holds water. 

Mr. Jordan: Well, Bay Communications and T-Mobile are renting land to 
construct a tower from Mr. Baker's property. 

Mr. Buckson: Yeah, I'm good but thank you, I appreciate it. Thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION 

Janice Bowman, 3873 Nine Foot Road, Greenwood, DE: Good evening. I hope 
you don't mind if I read because I would ramble on if I didn't have it written 
down. I guess my property is the closest to the proposed Communication Tower. 
My northern border is adjoined to the southern border of the Hot Mix Plant by a 
County Tax Ditch that's all that divides us. My son's home is the closest 
residence to the site of the tower which they're saying is 505 feet from him and I 
own the property that's between him and the site. My home is situated west of 
my son's. For the record, I want to say that I'm against the tower being built so 
close to me. Aside from the fact that I think it would be an eyesore in that area, I 
have other concerns. First, because of the 200' height it would cause more 
lightning strikes around it. I read an article that stated the higher the tower the 
more the strikes. It also said that most strikes go in the ground but some can go 
lateral. Does that mean it could strike our homes if it goes that way? Second, 
what kind of lights would the tower require and would they be blinking, red or 
white ones and how many on the pole? They would surely interfere with our 
surroundings. Can you imagine seeing them shining through your windows at 
night? Or while you're sitting on your porch? Third, will it emit any type of 
technical interference with our TV s, phones, computers, appliances etcetera? 
And lastly, it will do away with my being able to sell or build anything 
northeast on my land, which would be close to it, further decreasing the value of 
my property. Thank you. 

Mr. Shawn Bowman, 3909 Nine Foot Road, Greenwood, DE: Here we are 
again. But yes I am the son; my house is the closest to the tower I assume at this 
point. I haven't had any conversations with any of you folks, been a little busy 
these days. Mr. Buckson kind of spoke to the feelings that I have. If this thing 
has to go there and I know we've been down this road with the other two projects 
that have had to go there, but if this thing has to go there, the only spot I see is the 
spot that Mr. Buckson pointed out, just to keep it away from the road, keep it at 
least somewhat of an eyesore for everybody, not just me. But to have it right 
next to the highway I think is ridiculous when you've got 20 acres that you can set 
it back. Not to mention there's got to be other properties. I know there's another 
fertilizer facility across the Nine Foot Road that has many acres set back off the 
highway that they could have put it on. Again, maybe the offer's not good 
enough for them, I don't know. But I'm defmitely opposed to this. You know 
we've been down this road, I don't have to educate you guys on that. But I think 
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we've burdened enough. So Mr. Buckson's comments I think are right on spot. 
Thank you. 

Mr. Angel: From what I understand Mr. Baker's not willing to use that piece of 
ground though that ... where the tower should go and based on what I heard from 
the gentleman where the signal would be the greater *INAUDIBLE* where he 
wants to put it now. Having sat on the telecommunications for NACo, landlines 
are disappearing, people need services and First Responders need to be 
respondents when you need the service so I always go that route, just to let you 
know because landlines are disappearing at an alarming rate. 

Mr. Bowman: I understand. All I can tell you is, and I don't have T-Mobile but I 
have great service in my house. I don't think there's any problem with First 
Responders getting any signal in that area. We have Farmington Firehouse which 
is half a mile away at best and I've not heard any problems so I don't know what 
to tell you. Again I think there's other properties. There's certainly this property. 
I don't think that we should be burdened when there's actual physical places this 
thing can be other than what they're proposing. 

Mr. Angel: And I understand that too, sir. I can tell you when I'm in Kitts 
Hummock I can't get cellphone service. Ifl'm in Hawaii it's like you're standing 
right next to me. Same thing in Little Creek, there's certain areas that are 
hotspots that you can't get service. There's three major carriers we want to make 
sure people have First Responders and be able to use the service and that's what I 
was ... it's been inbred on me for telecommunications. We want people to have 
the service. I don't want to see a conglomerate just be number 1 because, 
remember Ma Bell got broke up years ago. So, T -Mobile is a viable source. 

Mr. Bowman: So you don't believe they can share towers, say Verizon Tower's 
covering that area they wouldn't be able to share that tower? 

Mr. Angel: What I said was if Mr. Baker would allow to put the ... and he won't, 
if this is the next best place based on what the gentleman says it's for the service 
for ... that's where it needs to go then it needs to have something in that service for 
T-Mobile. 

Mr. Bowman: I understand what you're saying but it's the next best option for 
them. Do you know what I mean? It's not the next best option, period. It's the 
next best option for the applicant and I don't think that that's what we should 
approve. 

Mr. Angel: I understand how you feel, sir but ... 

Mr. Howell: Mr. President I want to ask Ms. Keifer a couple of things. What 
did you say RPC had voted on this? 
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Ms. Keifer: They voted unanimously to recommend approval. 

Mr. Howell: And they took into consideration there are places they could be 
and ... 

Ms. Keifer: They took into a great deal of consideration into try ... to encouraging 
the applicant to place it elsewhere on this site. And at their last meeting were 
presented with an affidavit explaining why ... explaining simply that the owner of 
the property will not permit that location to be used. So yes, there was a great 
deal of deliberation on the part of the Planning Commission with respect to 
location. 

Mr. Howell: But they still voted unanimous? 

Ms. Keifer: They did. 

Mr. Howell: Okay. 

Mr. Bowman: Sirs? 

Mr. Banta: Is this going to be a rebuttal to what's been said? 

Mr. Bowman: Will I have a chance to do that? 

Mr. Banta: No. 

Mr. Bowman: Okay. 

Mr. Hosfelt: President Banta, I have a question for that gentleman if it's 
permissible. 

Mr. Banta: Sure. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Sir, in regards to placement, the antenna, is it a cost issue or is it 
based on best reception issue? 

Mr. Jordan: You mean in the particular location? Mr. Dixon is probably better 
equipped to handle that question from a technical standpoint but my 
understanding is that we can fill the hole. We have a fairly broad swath of place 
to fill the hole but none of the other property owners would rent to us except the 
Hot Mix and that's in the ... that's in the record. The Hot Mix operator would not 
let us go to the northeast side. We went back to him a couple of times, we went 
back to him before the hearing and after the hearing and that's just what it is. I 
heard somebody mention T -Mobile but this tower can accommodate two other 
carriers. There could be a Verizon; there could be AT&T on this tower. If either 
of those carriers or any other carrier had a tower within a half mile of our 
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proposed site we would be using that tower not building a new tower. It cost a lot 
of money to build a new tower and we don't build them if they're not needed. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you. 

Public Hearing Closed on Application CS-18-03 

Mr. Howell: With some hesitation here I'm going to make a motion that we go 
ahead and approve this based primarily on the fact that RPC was unanimous on it. 
That doesn't mean I'm insensitive to what you're saying here, but we'll just put it 
on the floor and let the Commissioners vote as they see fit. So consequently, my 
Motion is that we approve CS-18-03, Bay Communications; the Applicant/Owner 
is Bay Communications/ELB, LLC. The Zoning District proposed use is General 
Industrial- IG, Telecommunications Facility. The area and Location ID, the west 
side of South DuPont Highway US Route 13 approximately 150' north of Nine 
Foot Road, County Road 62, south ofFarmington, MN-00-193.00-01-48.00-000; 
seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, RPC approval, the 18 reasons stated in the book for this project, 
based on my comments of sitting on the National Telecommunications for NACo, 
we need more services out there and for First Responders and the people that need 
the service. So my answer's yes. 

Mr. Buckson: I'll be disappointed but it is what it is. We're back again. This is 
not about the application for an asphalt plant or transfer station. It's not a chance 
to get back at them. It has nothing to do with that at all. It is simply recognizing 
the concerns of the individuals that live there. If you look at the testimony that 
was presented to you from residents who were communicated to and talked to 
about the location of it you could see that there was still burning embers there. 
So, this is just one more chance for us to throw something back at them or make a 
correction. It's pretty simple. The applicant has a choice, and my understanding 
is the Applicant is Mr. Baker because the condition of 34 says that the lessee 
cannot bring this forward, a conditional approval cannot be brought forward. So, 
if that in fact is the case the applicant has a decision to make if he wants the 
tower; recognize the concerns of the people in that area and put it back there in 
the northwest area. If he does not, say so which is what he said, and then the cell 
tower operators or the applicant or whomever they are can then present a better 
offer to other locations that are in that area. It's not a 911 emergency situation. 
This is about doing what I think is a fair and equitable job related to what they've 
been through. So I don't think that I'm asking for too much. So with all that, as I 
stated before, my recommendation is no. No. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Based upon the recommendation of the RPC, Staffs 
recommendation for approval and the testimony given I vote to approve. 
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Mr. Howell: I vote yes based on RPC's approval. 

Mr. Pepper: I agree with a lot of what Mr. Buckson says however the applicant or 
the person representing ... Mr. Jordan representing the applicant stated that they 
checked within a half mile radius around there. There's no other towers to co
locate on which is one of the things I look for. So ... And that general area is the 
best location for the frequency that they need to serve the area and I always go 
with public safety. As you get further out west of there, as a matter of fact I was 
out there in Andrewsville not too long ago and talking on the phone lost reception 
so I'm hoping that this tower helps folks out in that area get the reception that 
they need. First Responders will have the service they need. I am not in favor of 
towers but I have to yield to public safety whenever we're talking about situations 
like this. So I vote yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: For all reasons stated as well as I'm very highly encouraged to 
improve our cellular coverage in areas that need it, my vote's yes. 

Mr. Banta: Based on the recommendation of the Regional Planning Commission 
and Staff, Commissioner Angel's comments along with Mr. Sweeney's, I vote 
yes. 

Roll Call reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) nay. Application CS-18-03 has been 
approved. 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Application #/Name: CS-18-05/Crossings at Kent Senior Living Facility; 

Applicant/Owner: Smith/Packett Med-Com, LLC./Woodbrook 
Development, LLC; Zoning District/Proposed Use: RM (Multi-Family 
Residential)/Senior Assisted Living/Nursing Home; Area & Location/ 
ID#: 7.34 ±acres located on the northern side of E. Lebanon Rd. (DE Rt. 
1 0), across from the intersection with Sorghum Mill Road (Co. Rd. 26), 
approximately 1,600' south of the entrance to Planters Run subdivision 
(N. Planters Ln.), west ofDover/NM-00-086.00-01-31.00-000. 

Ms. Keifer: Application CS-18-05 is a Conditional Use Site Plan for a Senior 
Assisted Living Facility. The site is 7.3 acres on the north side ofRoute 10 across 
from the intersection of Sorghum Mill just west of Dover. The site is zoned RM, 
Multi-Family Residential. The Planning Commission took testimony on this 
application at their July 5th hearing and at their July 12th business meeting voted 
unanimously to recommend conditional approval. The applicant was agreeable to 
all of the conditions proposed including either installation of the sidewalk along 
the frontage or providing fee in lieu to DelDOT using brick along the fac;ade that 
matches the brick of the historic home across the street and installation of a 
monument sign rather than a traditional free-standing sign. So again this comes 
with a unanimous recommendation for approval, I'm happy to answer any 
questions you might have. 
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Mr. Pepper: Ms. Keifer, where is the nearest sidewalk from either direction? 

Ms. Keifer: Route 10 most certainly, particularly on that side of the road does not 
have sidewalks throughout. There is a pedestrian path planned for the opposite 
side. Staffs thought and the applicant had agreed at some point DelDOT is likely 
to look to retrofit sidewalk in the area which is why we thought fee in lieu would 
be a reasonable solution. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: I just want to state for the record that I don't hold the asphalt plant 
against Mr. Dunkle. 

Mr. Sweeney: It's not your turn Mark. Sit down. Ms. Keifer, do we know what 
the fee in lieu of would be for the sidewalk? 

Ms. Keifer: I do not know the total. That's a formula that's included within 
DelDOT' s regulations. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, so I do have a concern about the sidewalk because it 
technically would be a sidewalk to nowhere, in both directions. And on the 
Planters Run side there would be almost no way to connect the sidewalk between 
this facility and the Wawa because of the closeness ofPlanter Run and Route 10 
there. 

Ms. Keifer: There's no question that retrofitting Route 10 would be a substantial 
undertaking that DelDOT would have to be a part of, or would have to lead, 
similar to the retrofitting of sidewalks along Route 13 in a lot of areas. That's 
why we thought fee in lieu would be a good start for a new development along 
that road. 

Mr. Sweeney: I'm sure this project went through the Plus Process? 

Ms. Keifer: It did. I believe ... actually ... The zoning went through Plus, the site 
plan didn't. 

Mr. Sweeney: So nothing from DelDOT on, from the Plus Process that they 
wanted the sidewalk? 

Ms. Keifer: The site plan did not go through DelDOT. I would offer and this has 
happened with other applications if DelDOT determines that they did not want fee 
in lieu then that would sort of answer the question. If throughout the final plan 
process DelDOT said, we're not interested that would be the end of the 
discussion. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Not interested as in, we're not interested in fee in lieu of or we're 
not interested in having sidewalks there? 

Ms. Keifer: If they did not want the fee in lieu. 

Mr. Sweeney: Then they would have to put sidewalks in? 

Ms. Keifer: That's up to the Levy Court. I think the Levy Court could easily say, 
installation of sidewalks at this juncture is not necessarily the best solution but 
planning ahead fee in lieu is a reasonable alternative unless of course DelDOT 
were to reject that. 

Mr. Sweeney: So if they paid the fee in lieu could DelDOT use those fees for the 
bimodal path on the other side of the highway? 

Ms. Keifer: I don't know the extent to which those are restricted. The path on the 
other side of the highway is part of a completely separate project. Ideally if an 
applicant on a specific piece of property is paying into ... then those funds would 
be reserved for improvements that affect a specific piece of property. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right. My only other concern if there's not a bimodal path on this 
side ofthe highway, inclusion of a bike rack which is very minimal seems like a 
dangerous prospect because I won't even ride a bike on Route 10. So I wouldn't 
encourage their employees who could be nurses or doctors or ... to ride their bikes 
on Route 10 because there happens to be a bike rack available at their place of 
work. 

Ms. Keifer: I think we only wanted to offer convenience for those who make that 
choice. 

Mr. Sweeney: Gotcha. Alright, thank you. 

Public Hearing Open on Application CS-18-05 

IN FAVOR 

Mark Dunkle, Parkowski, Guerke and Swayze, 116 West Water Street, Dover, 
DE: I'd like to say my son has joined my law firm in the Wilmington office and 
I'm very proud of him for doing that. I am really happy to be here but I'll keep 
my remarks even shorter than usual because that's a relief to everyone I'm sure in 
the room. You all know about this project, you were very supportive ofthe 
rezoning. We got together with Commissioner Sweeney before we filed any 
application with anybody to talk to the neighbors. I know we haven't pleased 
100% of the neighbors but I think we've done a pretty good job and we really 
appreciate the communication. I'm going to let Will Holmes from Smith!Packett 
in Roanoke just tell you about this building and this plan. Just for the legal record 
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we agree with all of the recommendations of the Staff report and the conditions 
and the RPC recommendation. I know that if you want a sidewalk we'll build a 
sidewalk. If you think it's wiser to wait and pay the cash 
Smith!Packett's ... They're a first class group and they're happy to do whatever 
you think is best. They're really thrilled to be in Kent County and bring this 
project. And now I am going to stop talking and let this gentleman speak to you. 
Will Holmes. 

Will Holmes, Smith!Packett: We are delighted to be able to be here this evening. 
This would be our first project in the State of Delaware. We'd be excited to be 
able to enter Delaware in this fashion. We currently have 14 other projects that 
are under construction. This is one of 16 that are also in development in addition 
to those 14 senior housing communities that Smith!Packett is developing around 
the Country. We develop on the Eastern part of the U.S. We have a sister 
operating company, Harmony Senior Services and they would be the operator of 
this community so we're both the developer and the operator. We'll be hiring 
well over 100 folks to work at this facility. It will house over 200 seniors with 89 
independent living, 67 assisted and 38 memory care units within the facility. Lots 
of common areas I've spoken to you about before that are provided in the facility 
along with van and bus transportation service that we provide. So we see a real 
need in your area for a community like this that's why we want to make over a 
$3 5 million investment to do this and would welcome the opportunity to become 
part of your community. If there are any questions, I'd be happy to answer. 

Mr. Sweeney: So Mr. Holmes, Mr. Dunkle and Ms. Keifer have mentioned that 
you agreed to the conditions that were set aside. 

Mr. Holmes: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Two of them that I was going to ask about were the structural 
design and then the design ofsignage. Both ofthose were pretty specific. I didn't 
know if your construction, whoever does your design work, do you get some kind 
of value because of the number of facilities you're in the process ofbuilding right 
now that ... ? You know how in the State of Delaware they're looking to 
standardize what a school looks like up and down the State in order to make 
everything cheaper for our residents? 

Mr. Holmes: We don't build any two communities the same, we don't have a 
prototype. We size the facility based on the need in that particular market and we 
adapt the building to fit on the site and then the exterior architecture is always 
designed to fit in to the architecture of the area. 

Mr. Sweeny: Okay, so then you understand exactly what Staff is asking for as far 
as using red brick and the signage off of the road? 

Mr. Holmes: Yes. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Okay, and even though I'm not really encouraged by a bike rack, 
that's a minor thing to put a bike rack next to an open door and trash cans in the 
back and all that stuff, you guys all agreed to that? 

Mr. Holmes: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. The one thing that I can say is I'm not really in favor of the 
denial for the waiver for sidewalk, I don't think having a sidewalk to nowhere is 
really helping anybody. And given the fact that you're putting in a number of 
walking paths around the property that you would have to connect to, that 
sidewalk might encourage some of your residents to walk out toward Route 10 
which we don't want. So, that's the direction I'm going. I just want to thank you 
and your team and Mr. Dunkle for what you guys have done with the 
communities ofPlanter's Run, Grand Oaks, Windswept in reaching out to them, 
letting them know what was coming. Some of the problems we've had were 
obviously water runoff, which we already know that Planter's Run is going to be 
a huge beneficiary of the amount of water that you're taking away from normally 
run into their backyards. A new concern came up about a week and a half ago 
concerning the electrical grid. Right before I ran for election the very first time 
there was an electrical problem in Planter's Run and we're pretty sure it's been 
fixed for quite a while, correct Denise? And we don't want to affect that but then 
the electrical grid is what it is, it's the electrical grid ... try saying that three times. 
So, I suspect if you guys discern a problem as you're going along obviously 
Delmarva Power's going to get involved in that and make sure everybody's right. 

Mr. Holmes: Yes, and we'll be working closely with them to be sure that the 
demands we have are supplied by their facilities. 

Mr. Sweeney: And in all our discussions it seems like you are very respectful, 
which I expect to extend to any of your contractors that are working on the site 
and working with the other developments and communities around you and I 
appreciate that. 

Mr. Holmes: Thank you. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I appreciate your facility. Any estimate on the number of jobs it will 
bring to Kent County? 

Mr. Holmes: Yes, 130 to 140 total employees, 97 full-time equivalents. The 
salary range for these will be from $96,000 to over $22,000 in annual salary, the 
average being around $45,000. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you, sir. 

Mr. Angel: Sir, affordability for people that .. .is this going to be ... what tier on 
financial ... is it going to be like a upper tier or a middle tier or ... ? 
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Mr. Holmes: We work hard to be able to be affordable to middle and upper 
income seniors, we're not affordable to everybody. We do not have a large entry 
fee like a lot of retirement communities so that we compete with half. You know 
3, 4, $500,000 to enter the community, we do not have that. It is straight rental. 
The independent living is going to provide not only the unit they live in but it's 
going to have the transportation services, one meal a day in the central dining 
room, all of the activity areas to take advantage of and staff to support that. The 
assisted living, those and the memory care residents get three meals a day. All 
utilities are paid for except for cable. But independent living is going to start 
around $2,800 a month and it will go up to around $4,000. Assisted living is 
going to be $3,800 up to $5,500.00, again depending on what level of service and 
type of unit you have. And then the memory care is going to be more like $5,000 
to $6,000 a month. 

Mr. Angel: That's basically ballpark with what's in the area is what you're 
saying? 

Mr. Holmes: Yes. 

Mr. Angel: Thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION 

Eleanor Newton, Planter's Run Community: We don't oppose to this request it's 
just our concern... (Sworn in) Our concern is the electric and the developer will 
investigate with Delmarva Power Supply to be adequate for our community as 
well as their own and here is our reason why. Is because the Planter's Run 
development as well as some other businesses in the area had serious issues in the 
past with the Delmarva Power and we had a continuous loss of power for short 
and extended periods of time. And at times we would lose just a tiny bit of 
power, we'd only have a little bit of power and that would give all the households 
this eerie glow because that's all the power they had. And that situation caused 
many problems to the Planter's Run. Basically they fought a battle with the 
Delmarva Power for about two years in order to get the issue corrected. And prior 
to the situation being resolved, if there was any weather issues like a slight rain 
storm or an extreme heat we would expect to lose the power for a good length of 
time. And although the problem has been resolved ... we were quite traumatized 
from all that experience. And the extreme heat that we have recently experienced 
as our weather it actually caused a lot of concern in our community with other 
residents. So our concern that the current infrastructure may not be able to 
support the new building and therefore cause us to experience power loss and be 
put back into the same situation that existed in the past. We imagine that when 
Planter's Run was initially developed everyone involved in the planning and 
approving of the development probably felt the infrastructure could support our 
electric supply. We do not know if the developer of the *INAUDIBLE* building 
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has any real knowledge of the ability of Delmarva Power to supply sufficient 
power so we have several people in our development that are on oxygen and I am 
sure that the proposed building will probably have many more people than we do 
with the same needs. At this time we have no objection to the building of the 
senior housing facility as well as developer can assure the residents of Planter's 
Run community that they will thoroughly investigate the ability of Delmarva 
Power to supply their power needs without affecting our power supply. And also 
if we experience a recurring power loss situation in the future after the housing 
facility is complete the realistic explanation for the problem is, regardless of what 
the explanation Delmarva Power may provide, would be the additional draw of 
power. If this becomes the case we would request the developer of the senior 
housing facility on Route 1 0 to work with Delmarva Power until the issue is 
resolved within our satisfaction ... as well. Thank you for allowing me to speak 
and hear our requests. 

Mr. Sweeney: We've had a lot of discussions about this and I've had some emails 
back and forth with Denise. I'm going to look to our engineers because I believe 
that the power supply is not finite, I don't think that there's a set amount that they 
give us. So a lot of the problems that occurred and you can remember back 
because I was involved when Planter's Run was having issues and I got involved 
with Delmarva Power, I believe you guys lost a lot of appliances too didn't you? 
And they made that ... they didn't make it 100% right but they did pay some 
homeowner's retribution for having to replace appliances. I don't believe that 
will happen again because of that but I would ask the engineers who may 
understand the electrical grid my comments are right, the power's not finite to 
where we're drawing a little bit from each one of. .. from the stream? 

Ms. Keifer: I'm a planner not an engineer so I'm not certain I can adequately 
answer your question. 

Mr. Sweeney: Well we haven't had any issues like this anywhere else, with any 
new construction or developments to where ... 

Ms. Keifer: We certainly have not heard of any that is correct. 

Mr. Sweeney: I know that Delmarva Power had experienced a lot of problems in 
the County about 10 years ago and they have replaced a lot of the service lines 
throughout the County. I know that I was having a problem for a couple of years 
and knock on wood I've not had any problem with power loss so ... But I've 
talked to the developer about this and they're willing to hear what you have to 
say. If they perceive that there's a problem, if there's going to be electrical losses 
whether it's power outages or, I think Delmarva Power *INAUDIBLE* people 
hitting poles somewhere at one point. Those things will happen but we'll be there 
and I'll be there to represent you to make sure that it's not their community or 
their development that's causing the problem. 
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Ms. Newton: Right, thank you so much for allowing me to do this. 

Public Hearing Closed on Application CS-18-05 

Mr. Sweeney: This is a facility that we all know that the age of Kent County 
residents is growing on a regular basis, we know that a lot of people throughout 
the whole Eastern seaboard are choosing Delaware and Kent County as the place 
for them to retire which effects our median age greatly. So I think this 194 bed 
facility is something that is much needed and hopefully will be very successful 
even though the memory part, hope you guys don't get a single person in your 
memory unit but the other units I hope you fill them up. I think it's a good idea 
and again I want to thank the developer for working so closely with the other 
communities to resolve their issues. I Move to approve CS-18-05, the Crossings 
at Kent Senior Living Facility as a much needed facility in our County that is 
growing in age, due to no public opposition, a unanimous RPC approval, Staff 
approval and the applicant has agreed to recommendations by Staff including the 
signage design, structural design and a bike rack and I also will approve the 
request for a waiver for a sidewalk along Route 10; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Sweeney. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the reasons given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, as per my motion. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, based on Commissioner Sweeney's comments. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application CS-18-05 has been approved. 

RESOLUTION RE: EXTENSION OF 
STORMW ATER MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 

Mr. Howell: 
1. Resolution 3703, A Resolution to extend the Kent County Stormwater 

Maintenance District pursuant to Chapter 52, Title 9 of the Delaware Code 
and Section 90.4E(10), Chapter 187 of the Kent County Code -Paradise 
Ridge. 
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Ms. Keifer: Resolution 3 703 creates the Paradise Ridge Storm water Maintenance 
District. A majority of the lot owners have signed the petition in the affirmative 
and those signatures have been verified by our Staff. Repairs to the infrastructure 
have been completed and verified by, the Conservation District, the operation and 
maintenance plan finalized. The annual fee for the district adopted in the FY19 
budget is $28.00 and if the district is created tonight that fee will be included with 
the 2018 property tax billing. So, the application ... the Resolution meets all of the 
standards for creating a Storm water Maintenance District and Staff recommends 
approval. I'm happy to answer any questions you'd like. 

Public Hearing Open on Resolution 3703 

IN FAVOR -None 

IN OPPOSITION -None 

Public Hearing Closed on Resolution 3703 

Mr. Howell: I Move that we approve Resolution 3703 which is a Resolution to 
extend the Kent County Stormwater Maintenance District pursuant to Chapter 52, 
Title 9 ofthe Delaware Code and section 90.4E (10), Chapter 187 ofthe Kent 
County Code, Paradise Ridge; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Howell. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, for the reasons given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons given. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, this is a beneficial program and reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: *Absent* 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Roll Call reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. Resolution 3703 has been 
approved. 
PUBLIC HEARINGS CLOSED 

Recess to Committee Meetings-8:34p.m. 

Reconvene Business Meeting-8:37p.m. 
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1. Introduction of Resolution 3707, A Resolution Establishing Danfield 
Estates Street Light District No. 182 for Public Hearing on Tuesday, 
August 14, 2018 at 7:00p.m. 

Mr. Howell: 
Potential Action Item from Public Works Committee Meeting: Septage Receiving 
Authorization Request 

Mr. Howell: I Move to authorize the President of Levy Court to sign the 
Environmental Covenant associated with Operable Unit 1 (OU-1 ); seconded by 
Mr. Pepper; carrived by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

OTHER BUSINESS - None 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

Mr. Petit de Mange: I just wanted to report to Levy Court that from July 13th 
through the 17th I was in Davidson County, Tennessee at the National Association 
of Counties Convention. I just wanted to report that it was a fabulous conference. 
I attended 19 sessions in 3 Yz days, everything from Federal Economic 
Development Policy and Department of Labor funding opportunities to Housing 
Policy and the Farm Bill, rural caucus issues that are being tracked by NACo. 
Also interesting GIS technologies that are emerging in other parts of the Country 
that we may want to look at in the future. It was just a great experience. I want to 
thank Levy Court for sending me and whenever go to one of these conferences I 
always come back feeling like I've grown, I've learned more, I've got a better 
perspective from a more global stand point about what's happening out there and 
effecting County governments. So again, I just appreciate the opportunity and 
believe me I took a lot of copious notes if you're interested in them but it was a 
great, great time so thank you very much. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you, Mr. Petit de Mange. We're very happy that you were able 
to attend. Thank you again. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS- None 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Mr. Buckson: *INAUDIBLE* just following up to Mr. Petit de Mange's 
comments on the NACo, I think for starters I talked to Mr. Petit de Mange this 
morning and I don't believe that we had any Commissioners in attendance this 
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time around and so I told him that to put me on the list, I'm going next year. But 
my point might be to, as I stated in the past instead of all seven which is what we 
currently could do maybe do like a rotational system. You guys can look at in 
Leadership but something as simple as, you know earmark two go every year and 
if you can't go then in bumps the third person in line, and if the third person can't 
go then the fourth person. That way we do have some kind of representation you 
know what I mean? Because as he stated it is kind of ... we went from seven went 
every year to ... now we're down to none. I don't know if that's the idea that, you 
know ... well you went and your zero, brother so you're zero this year. What 
are ... are you not voting? Anyway so running my mouth a little bit but I'd just 
wanted to tell you that I'll be going next year. Unless all seven go and then I'm 
backing out. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Just if I could follow up on that on an annual budget basis 
we've been budgeting for three attendees at NACo and so that's been kind of our 
practice since about 2007. Usually one or two will attend and so we're kind of on 
that track but Commissioner Buckson' s point you know if other Commissioners 
who haven't had an opportunity to go to NACo wish to go let me know and we'll 
get you scheduled. I already mentioned to Kathy based on an earlier conversation 
with Commissioner Buckson today that Commissioner Buckson wants to be on 
the list for the conference coming up next year. I think it's a great opportunity 
again and I would encourage you to get involved. Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: So is it in the Bahamas next year, Hawaii or? 

Mr. Petit de Mange: No, it's ... no, no it's not Las .. .its Clark County, Nevada. 
Just making sure right? 

Mr. Sweeney: Second thing is Mr. Petit de Mange and I had an opportunity and 
the honor of doing the Public Speaking statewide 4-H judging on Friday night. 
And if you get an opportunity to .. .if you can't make it to our Chambers in early 
February to see the County competition try to get there for the Friday night 
competition next year at the... These are kids that are ... they are just unbelievable 
speakers. They do an excellent job and they scare me. I don't want none of them 
living in my district because they are very smart and very well spoken and would 
just put me under the table. 

Mr. Angel: Thank you, Mr. Buckson but I was not able to go this year but I will 
say that Sussex County all went this year. All I can say is when you go you bring 
back and make these ... you forge in and you come back with a wealth of 
knowledge. And I sit on a lot of committees and I'm sometimes burnt out but 
when I get back I'm rejuvenated when I get back. So I'd like to see at least five 
of us go at some point so we have a body there, a voting body of 4 or 5. But I 
just want to put that out there because as Mike says ... I mean, I asked him to go 
to a couple of things for me too and, you know you learn so much and it's not, it's 
something you can't just webinar on, you can't watch... You've got to be there. 
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It's not just that timeframe, it's after what takes place, the discussions the 
forgeries ... the forging of getting in and talking about people and positions and 
things like that. So I'd like to see more of us get back involved. I know when 
seven Commissioners did go, they all went but they didn't always go if you know 
what I mean. So things have changed and once you get there you'll change too. 
On a good note, Mr. Sweeney and I were at the DE Turf last Monday night and 
there was 33 States represented, two Countries, 1800 kids on the field, 2000 cars 
in the park and by God was it packed. We need to get more space for parking. So 
anyway just wanted to let you know you guys missed a wonderful opportunity. 
On that field, even rolling across on my roller it was great. Actually you got to 
see the ... what our vision was being part ofthat opening it was fantastic. Thank 
you. 

Mr. Pepper: I don't go somewhere as glamorous as Nashville but last weekend I 
was in Lancaster with the Kent Conservation District and it was a very good 
conference sponsored by District there in Lancaster, the Pennsylvania Association 
of Conservation Districts. But one thing that we did do, we went on a tour of two 
different farms. One farm was the Brubaker farm there just outside of Lancaster. 
They milk 1,150 head of cattle, they milk 21 hours per day, they have 18 acres, 
1800 acres of land that they till and they also have several thousand chickens that 
they raise, broilers there. And their farm is very innovative. They take the liquid 
waste that comes from the barn area and they convert that to methane for use on 
the farm. They use solar panels for most of their electricity. They have solar 
panels on top of all their barns and all their chicken houses. They do crop 
harvesting that they put the tractors on the field the least amount as possible 
because of compaction, they use no till farming. They took us on a tour of their 
farm and showed us everything that they do and it's really quite an operation to 
say the least. Matter of fact, back in 2016 when President Trump was running for 
office, he asked to come there as one of his campaign stops and they told him no 
because they didn't want all the people on the farm. They're a real nice family, 
really involved in what they do. Conversely we went to a Amish farm; the farmer 
has 62 head of cattle on 60 acres of land. They do crops such as com, hay and 
straw but their main crop, their money maker is tobacco still. They get $6,000 per 
acre from Phillip Morris for their tobacco. Now if the tobacco is going to be used 
for cigars they can get up to $18,000 per acre. So that's why you see in Lancaster 
around that area so many Amish farmers with tobacco on there. They had a very 
nice, a very neat farm but they didn't compare .. .large contrast between their farm 
and the other farm that we went to. But they utilize every inch of that farm and 
crops in year round and all their ... instead of having all the modem equipment 
they have some really nice draft horses to pull their equipment. So it was a nice 
contrast and the Amish folks whose farm it was, very nice people. They let us 
wander around the farm and be nosy and ask nosy questions. So it was a very 
good conference for 3 Yz days and I really enjoyed it, very informative. Thank 
you. 
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M-18-138 Motion to adjourn by Mr. Pepper; seconded by Mr. Howell; carried 
by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 8:49 p.m. 

enda Wootten 
Kent County Clerk of the Peace 


